KELLERHALS ENGINEERING SERVICES LTD.

Cansulting Enginears in River Enginesring and Hydroiogy

Telephors (804 786-3570
Box 250
ROLF KELLERHALS, P.ENG. i—ze:‘u}‘ 8;5‘; 8.0
Dipl. ing., M.Sc., Ph.D. VOP 1HD
Mr. R.J. Lampard, August 19, 1%91

Manager, Strathcona Districk,?

Ministry of Parks, '
Box 1479, | REVVEM
Parksville, B.C. VvQR 280

Dear Mr. Lampard,
Re: Ecological Reszsyve £118

Nimpkish River
Bank Resgtoration
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This is my report on the August 13 site visit with you and wik
Mr. Rik Simmons of Parks BC to deal with ths consaguences of Canfor
removal of drift logs from the Nimpkiszh River aleng the above reserv
and from the reserve itself (including removal of soie standing tre
from the river banks of the reserve).
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By re-apenirg the almost obandened and blocked river chapnzl
Canfor has probably done severe, long term damaye to the reseyve, The
failure of the dike at the SE corner, the re-opaning of the sast-gside
cutoff chapnel and the extensive obetruction of the old river channel
with large drift loys,combined to greatly reduce the erogien problems
of the raserve and provide an spportunity to achieve long term

stability with 2 few low cost, unintrusive measures.

The situation as I saw it on April 13, 1991 was very simiiay ho
what existed in spring of 1987, when a chance to achisve iong term
stability was foregone by giving Canfor another large log jam in
return for highly intrusive river training works that are new in the
process of failing. Unless you want to cophtinne trading the large
organic debris load of the MNimpkish River and the trees of the
Ecological Reserve for riprap diking, it appears to be well bayond the
means of your ministry to stabilize Lhe river banks of the raoserve
with the Nimpkish River kept in its old channel. The non-intrusive
stabiiization measures which I have bean propesing for zeveral years
are no longer feasible now, except at a few gites, becaozge most of the
large drift logs needed to implement thess measures have been givan
away.

In the present situation, your best chance of reducing future
rezerve land loss lies in minimizing the contact betweern the river and

~the reserve, i.e. in encouraging the existing cutoff or, even better,
in initiasting ather cutoffs furthor te the east. Note that T bLelis. s
that a complete cntoaff zould be aahicwrd ot far less ookt Elan
suggested by Hayco in their March 1980 report.
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Assuming that there 1s neither time nor funds to do muah
f2ll, I suggest the following:

Open up and enlarge the partial cutoff immed)
=

iate .
eask of the 1337 dike (se2 Fig.l) in order to have & better
flow entrance into the main cutoff channel. Other cutolf

channels further to the =ast should also he opened as soon
az possible. Note that this will naturally ineresase the
erosion potential aleng the esast side of the reserve which
will need to bhe protected with tied logz as socn as
possible.

Obstruct the entrance inte the old river chanpel with
broad, low gravel dike built, preferably, with grave
brought from somewhare other than the channel immediate
downstream of the dike (Figs. 1 and 2). Fig. 1 shows some
potential borrow plt sites, Even 2f veu cannot afford to
import gravel and have to build the dike by wmoundiag up
iocal gravel with a dozer, it would still be desirable to go
ahead. The dike i3 m=ant to encourags and help small and
intermedisate £lowds Lo enlargs Lhe eastern cutoffsg. It mignt
also help with the establishment of alder in ths prssentl
abandoned channel, but it will {and ig meant to) fail in
large £loud.

b ({0
10 e 0

P

Bring the large drift logs from tha right bank gravel bar
the SE corner of the reserve acress the river and tie ¥
te the left {(ragarve) bank in such a way that Lfhey hed
protect the failing riprap corner. The logs sust he tisd a
or near their upsiream end and should have the root end
point upstream.
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At the NW corner of the reserve, where most of Canfor's work

concentrated, there is also some need far remsadial work.
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The right hank pile of =mall, non marchantabls lege tha
have been left obstructing the entrance to a small channs
cutting off the NW corner of the reserve should be left a
is.

The large pile of stumps immedisately upstream of the log
pile should probably be removed, primarily for aesthetic
reasons. A large flood would float them off in any case.
They do little harm from an engineering point of view and
could be left as a monumant Lo Ecological Reserve management
by Fisheries and Oceans Canada, the Ministrv of the
Environment and Canfor.
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LR The large log burisd undernesath the stump pile should be
left with its upstream end cable-tied to a nealthy rad cedar
some 10 m upstream. Two to four upturnad root wads could b

2
left wedged in bhetween the Jog and the river bank no halp
hceld the log in place during normal winter f£loods.

43 The bulldozed river bank of tha reserve should be re-gradsd
and replanted. Thi=z, too. is primarilv an aesthetic measurs,

None of the above 1z likely to survive a largs fiood, par-
ticularly if the river should decide once again to make the old chan-
nel around the reserve it main channel.

Iu general you should be awdre Lhat Lhe removal of Lhe old groablh
forests from the flood plains of alluvial gravel-bed ri”gr" such ag

the Nimpkish, tends to destabilize these rivers and leads to a gradual
widening of the active channel zone. Ever zince the Ministry 3f Parks
ramoved the large wood debris from the Elk River channel in the mid
seventies, it has been Known that thi* pvrocedures does not alleviate
channel stability or bank erosion problems but may in fact aggravate
them. Stable, large organic debris is naturally also an lmporhant
component ©f the fish habitat in these viverxs.

Seeing that Fisheries and Ocsanz Canada iz incapable of locking
after their own interests and does not appear to cars aboub anyene
else’s and the BC Ministry of the Environment is completely ignoring
theilr mandate on northerrn Vancouver ILsiand, the Ministyy of Parks
snould oppose any debrisz removal from the Nimpkish River draipage at
Ecological Peserve $118 and anvvherse upstream 1f the debris might
eventually reach the reserve. This neads t¢ be nade very <l=ar to
these agencies, as only they have the necessary mandate to address

this problem.

ours vary truly,
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ROH’ Kellarhals P.Eng’

ac, Mr J.5. Murray, Canfor, wWoss, B.C,
RK/hrkk
Encl.







